Public Document Pack

Your ref Our ref Ask for Christine Lewis Email christine.lewis@lichfielddc.gov.uk



www.lichfielddc.gov.uk

District Council House, Frog Lane Lichfield, Staffordshire WS136YU

Customer Services 01543 308000 Direct Line 01543 308065

24th January 2018

Dear Sir/Madam

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Employment Committee has been arranged to take place **THURSDAY**, **1ST FEBRUARY**, **2018 at 6.00 PM IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM** District Council House, Lichfield to consider the following business.

Access to the Committee Room is via the Members' Entrance.

Yours Faithfully

Netture

Neil Turner BSc (Hons) MSc Director of Transformation & Resources

To: Members of Employment Committee

Councillors Mrs Baker (Chairman), Mrs Boyle (Vice-Chair), Mrs Banevicius, Cox, Mrs Eagland, Greatorex, Miss Hassall, Rayner, Salter and B Yeates









1.	Apologies for Absence	
2.	Declarations of Interest	
3.	Minutes of the Previous Meeting	1 - 2
4.	Officer Code of Conduct Update	3 - 14
	The updated Code of Conduct is attached for reference	
5.	Member Development Strategy	Verbal Report
	This will include a discussion on the Member Development Questionnaire, approach to training and future Councillor induction pack content.	
6.	Policy Review 2018 Schedule	15 - 16





y



EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE

20th NOVEMBER 2017

PRESENT:

Councillors Mrs Baker (Chairman), Cox, Mrs Eagland, Greatorex, Miss Hassall, Rayner, Salter and Smedley.

149 (APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE was received from Councillors Mrs Boyle (Vice Chairman), Mrs Banevicius and B. W. Yeates).

150 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no Declarations of Interests

151 MINUTES

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 30th August 2017, as printed and circulated, were taken as read, approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

152 PROPOSED PROGRAMME OF WORK FOR POLICY REVIEW 2018

The Committee received a report on the planned programme of work to review key policies. It was noted that dates for the reviews had not been established as yet but they would be considered by the Committee when being undertaken.

The People Strategy was then discussed and it was reported that it was a key policy and would bridge the gaps between other policies and link in with the Fit for the Future programme. It was noted that the Strategy may be broken down into a number of documents for ease.

It was noted by the Committee that the Terms of Conditions review would begin after the TUPE of leisure Officers in February.

When asked, the membership of the Employee Liaison Group (ELG) was confirmed including Union representation and it was noted that ELG were also consulted with all proposed changes to policies.

RESOLVED: That the information received be noted.

153 EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED: That as publicity would be prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted, the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, which would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended.

IN PRIVATE

154 REDUNDANCY

The Committee received a report on a compulsory redundancy together with the financial implications.

RESOLVED: That the compulsory redundancy as reported on the schedule attached at Appendix 1 of the Report be approved.

155 FIT FOR THE FUTURE – REVENUES AND BENEFITS REDUNDANCY

In accordance with Section 100B (4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Chairman of Employment Committee determined that this item be considered as a matter of urgency.

The Committee received a report on compulsory redundancies together with the financial implications.

RESOLVED: That the compulsory redundancies as reported on the schedule attached at Appendix 1 of the Report be approved.

(The Meeting closed at 6.32 p.m.)

CHAIRMAN

Agenda Item 4



Code of Conduct

February 2018

Document Location

This document is held by Lichfield District Council, and the document owner is the Head of Corporate Services

Printed documents may be obsolete. An electronic copy is available on Lichfield District Council's Intranet 'Brian'. Please check for current version before using.

Revision History

······································				
Revision Date	Summary of changes			
15/11/16	Final Draft			
25/1/17	Draft for Committee			
09/02/17	Final Employment			
	Committee			
29/12/17	Revised and updated			

Approvals

Name	Approved	Date
Leadership Team	Yes	9 November 2016
ELG	Yes	December 2016
Employment Committee	Yes	February 2017
/Full Council		
ELG		21 December 2017
Leadership Team		17 January 2018
Employment Committee		1 February 2018

Document Review Plans

This document is subject to regular review. Updates shall be made in accordance with business requirements and changes will be with agreed in consultation with the Employee Liaison Group.

Distribution

The document will be available on Brian.

LICHFIELD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR EMPLOYEES

1. Introduction

Lichfield District Council relies on the professionalism, reliability and loyalty of its employees. This Code of Conduct sets out the Council's expectations of its employees to maintain the highest standards of integrity and personal conduct in the workplace. Anyone representing the Council in their work is required to promote and maintain these standards in order to uphold the good reputation of the Council and its services.

The Code of Conduct is based on a set of core principles recommended by Government and have been adapted to take account of local rules, procedures and priorities at Lichfield District Council.

2. Status of the Code

Failure to comply with the standards set out in this Code may be considered a disciplinary offence and managed, investigated and reported in accordance with the Disciplinary Policy. This could result in an employee's dismissal from the Council with or without notice, in line with that Policy.

The topics covered in this Code are intended to be comprehensive. However employees should assume that conduct or actions which are not directly specified but which are similar to those described, or relate to similar standards and principles to those set out in this Code are also covered by it.

3. Who the Code Covers

The Code of Conduct covers all categories of Council employees whether full-time or part-time, permanent or temporary or casual.

The principles set out in this Code will also serve as guidance for agency staff, consultants, contractors, partners, external secondees and volunteers who are engaged to carry out work or provide services on behalf of the Council. If the Code is breached by these people, the Council will consider terminating the contract or arrangement with that individual, company or organisation.

Inevitably some of the issues covered by the Code will affect senior, managerial and professional employees more than they will affect other employees.

Activities carried out by employees whilst acting as members, trustees or directors of companies or voluntary organisations on behalf of the Council are subject to the standards within this Code.

This Code also applies to functions that could be perceived as being work-related that are undertaken outside working hours. Such events could be on or off the Council's premises and could include, for instance, non-working time whilst away on business, office Christmas parties, leaving celebrations or a 'team night out', or other social events where the individual or group can clearly be identified as

being associated with and/or linked to the Council. This is to ensure that individuals, whether employees or members of the public, are protected from unacceptable behaviour from employees outside the workplace, and to protect the council's reputation.

The Code covers employees discussing the Council or its business outside of work whether that be in public, in the media, on the internet, social media or networking sites.

This Code does not cover Members as there is a separate Code of Conduct for Councillors.

4. Aims of the Code

This Code will:

- Support the effective operation of the Council's business and the wellbeing of its employees;
- Assist the Council's employees to perform effectively by ensuring the rules and standards of the organisation are clearly communicated; and
- Guide the Council's employees in their dealings with the public, elected Members and other members of staff.

5. Roles and Responsibilities

- Elected Members, the Chief Executive and senior managers will ensure the Code is maintained and set a positive example of good behaviour and appropriate ways of working for all staff.
- Managers will ensure that all individuals working for or on behalf of the Council are aware of their obligations under the Code and take appropriate action with the employee or worker to resolve any conflicts of interest or deal with any breaches of the Code.
- Employees will comply with the standards and requirements of the Code and seek advice from their manager or HR if they are unsure what is expected in particular circumstances. Employees are also responsible for promptly reporting any breaches of the Code that they become aware of.
- HR will ensure that appropriate advice and training on maintaining the standards set out in the Code is available as appropriate and advise managers on applying the Code fairly.

6. Principles of the Code

The Code has the Council's values at its core. Employees are expected to demonstrate behaviours that reflect these values while performing their duties, or whist they are seen to be representative of the Council.

The values of Lichfield District Council are:

- Put our customers first
- Have respect for everyone
- Improve and innovate

In addition, employees performing duties on behalf of the Council will be expected to:

- Perform their duties to the highest possible standards, with honesty, integrity and impartiality and be accountable for their own actions;
- Have a duty of trust to the Council as their employer and to the local community and service users;
- Treat others with respect, fairness and dignity at all times; and
- Communicate any concerns about breaches of the Code to an appropriate Manager to ensure that service standards and organisational values are met or improved.

7. Working at the Council

Employees are expected to maintain a good attendance record at work. They are also expected to attend work promptly and work within the scope of their contract, carrying out all reasonable and lawful management instructions to fulfil the requirements of their job.

Refer to the Council's Attendance Management Policy and Procedure for more information.

Employees are also expected to maintain a professional appearance at work. The Council does not operate a formal dress code for its employees, other than for those who are provided with a uniform and/or protective clothing. However, employees must ensure that their dress is appropriate for the situation in which they are working and that they present a professional image and one that reflects sensitivity to customer expectations and perceptions.

8. Policies, Procedures and Professional Codes of Practice

Employees must comply with all reasonable management instructions and abide by legislation, the Council's constitution, policies and procedures, operational or departmental practices and health and safety rules. They must also follow the protocols of any relevant professional bodies and the standards required of their particular profession.

9. Political Neutrality

Members are elected to determine the policies and activities of the Council. Employees serve the Council as a whole. Employees must serve all Councillors, not just those of a particular group or political party and will ensure that the individual rights of all Councillors are respected.

Employees must ensure that their own personal or political opinions do not interfere with any policy of the council. Employees who advise political groups must maintain strict political neutrality.

10. Politically restricted posts

Some employees will be in jobs that are politically restricted. This means that they are prevented by law from taking part in certain political activities outside of their work. The political activities that are restricted for these employees include:

- Standing as a candidate for election to the House of Commons, European Parliament or a local authority (but not a Parish Council).
- Holding office in a political party at any level (except in limited roles concerned only with the internal membership of the party).
- Speaking in public or publishing any written or artistic work which appears to be intended to affect public support for a political party.
- Canvassing at an election.

Employees in politically restricted posts will be notified of this in their contract of employment. Employees who are not clear about activities covered by this should contact HR for advice.

11. Equality issues

The Council requires the highest standard of behaviour from all its employees and specific attention is drawn to the Council's policies covering equal opportunities and discrimination.

All employees must comply with the law and the Council's policies relating to equality of treatment in the workplace to promote a productive and harmonious work environment. Council employees must not be involved in harassment or bullying against colleagues, other employees, workers or job applicants. All colleagues, members of the local community and customers have a right to be treated with fairness and equality.

Please refer to the Equal Opportunities Policy for further information.

12. Working Relationships

All internal and external relationships with colleagues, service users, contractors and Councillors will be conducted in a professional and respectful way.

Mutual respect between the Council's employees and its Councillors is essential to good local government. However close personal familiarity can damage the relationship and should therefore be avoided. Further details are available in the Council's Constitution with regards to Managing Officer and Member Relationships

13. Personal Relationships

Council employees cannot be involved in an appointment, or be involved in any decision relating to discipline, promotion or any pay adjustments or conditions, or be in the line management hierarchy of another employee or prospective employee to whom they are related or have a close personal relationship. Employees must declare all such relationships to their manager and must ensure compliance with all of the Council's policies relating to the recruitment and management of staff.

Please refer to the Managing Personal Relationships at Work Policy and the Recruitment Policy for further information.

14. Dealing with Local Communities

Employees should always remember their responsibilities to the community they serve. They should be courteous, efficient and ensure impartial service delivery to all groups, individuals, service users and other stakeholders.

In either an official capacity or in their private life, a Council employee will ensure that they will behave in a way that is not seen as bringing the Council into disrepute. Employees are entitled to a private life but must take care that the duties of public service are not breached by activities or inappropriate behaviour in their off-duty hours.

15. Declaring Personal Interests and Outside Commitments

Employees must declare to their manager and, when appropriate, at meetings -

- Any non-financial or financial interests that might conflict with the Council's interests or services, including with suppliers or potential suppliers to the council;
- Membership of any organisation that is not open to the public without formal membership and commitment of allegiance and which has secrecy about rules, membership or conduct, or;
- Membership of other groups, clubs and societies;
- Where it might be reasonably perceived that an employee has a potential conflict of interest and/or where an employee believes could be relevant to declare in particular circumstances.

Where any of the above circumstances apply:

Managers will ensure that the employee is not involved in any decision-making relating to these interests. However, if an employee fails to notify their manager and/or deliberately engages in activities that are clearly in conflict with their duties or role with the Council, this will be treated as a breach of trust and a disciplinary offence which may lead to dismissal from the Council.

Employees should immediately inform their manager of any other work or employment they have. Managers will ensure that the employee is made aware of any contractual restrictions on accepting any additional employment outside of the Council, especially in circumstances where this additional work may conflict with the Council's interests.

Employees who are in any doubt about whether any personal relationships, interests or outside commitments should be declared in particular circumstances, should either declare the information or seek further advice from their manager, HR Manager or the Monitoring Officer.

16. Disclosure of Criminal Convictions

Council employees must inform their manager of any charge, criminal convictions or cautions received in a timely and appropriate way. Failure to disclose this information to the Council may be regarded as gross misconduct under the Disciplinary Policy.

17. Fidelity Guarantee and additional checks

Some employees may be subject to additional recruitment checks or security clearance requirements to comply with the law and to ensure good employment practices. This will normally be for posts that have financial responsibilities or require statutory professional qualifications for their role, or which require contact with children or vulnerable adults. Such checks will be carried out by relevant external organisations.

In each case the role would be advertised as requiring these specific checks or clearances and the recruitment applicant or employee will be notified of the need for a check and its results. The results of these checks must be satisfactory to the Council. Unsatisfactory findings of a check may require the Council to dismiss an employee or withdraw an offer of employment during recruitment.

18. Confidential Reporting Procedure (Whistle Blowing)

The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, integrity and accountability. All employees who become aware of activities that they believe are illegal, improper, unethical, or in any way inconsistent with this Code of Conduct must report the matter in line with the Council's confidential reporting procedure: Confidential Reporting (Whistleblowing) Policy and have due regard to the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998.

Council employees must ensure that public interest and assets are protected by reporting immediately any concerns about dishonesty or impropriety that they think has happened or are likely to happen. Concerns or allegations which fall within the scope of specific procedures (for example Protection of Vulnerable Adults or Protection of Vulnerable Children) will normally be referred to those procedures for consideration.

Employees should not make any public statements about their concerns until they have exhausted the correct and relevant internal procedures, unless such a disclosure is allowed for within the Council's Confidential Reporting (Whistleblowing) Policy. Employees must assist in any investigation or hearing into suspected misconduct in accordance with the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998.

The Council will take all allegations seriously however if an employee or worker makes an allegation that is in bad faith, malicious or for personal gain, the Council will consider taking disciplinary action.

Please refer to the Confidential Reporting (Whistleblowing) Policy and Procedure for further information.

19. Contractors and Competitive Tendering

Any orders or contracts must be awarded by fair and open competition against other tenders in line with the Council's Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Procedure Rules. No special favour should be shown to businesses with connections to employees.

In accordance with the Contract Procedure Rules employees must declare any personal or social relationship, or current and previous working relationship with a particular contractor, or any contractors seeking or likely to seek contracts, to the Head of Legal, Property and Democratic Services.

Contractors may include individuals who are temporarily working alongside Council employees, or employees of an external firm that has been awarded a contract to provide services on behalf of the Council. All contractors will be treated with courtesy and respect.

There must be a clear separation of client and contractor roles. Senior Council employees who have both a client/contractor responsibility must be aware of the need for accountability and openness.

Any Council employee or worker who has access to confidential information on tenders of costs relating to contractors must not disclose the information to any unauthorised party or organisation, and must ensure that no special favour is shown to current or former employees or associates in awarding contracts.

Employees should not be involved in any competitive tendering processes where they have declared a relationship/interest. If they are involved that may be deemed to be a disciplinary offence and may lead to dismissal in line with the Disciplinary Policy and Procedure.

Please refer to the Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Procedure Rules for further information.

20. Gifts, Hospitality, Sponsorship and Endorsements

Council employees should not accept gifts or hospitality from external suppliers and contractors or elected members and should not have any involvement in the sponsorship of events or endorsement of a product or service where there may be a conflict of interest.

It is a criminal offence for Council employees to receive any gift, loan, fee, reward or advantage for doing, or not doing, anything or showing favour, or disfavour, to any person in their official capacity. The acceptance of gifts and hospitality (including sponsorship of a local government activity) must be treated with extreme caution. Trade gifts and rewards from companies or organisations are gifts to the Council and are not for personal use.

The receipt of minor articles, for example, diaries and calendars, will not be regarded as the acceptance of a gift, although employees should not accept significant personal gifts from contractors and outside suppliers. Offers of hospitality and invitations should be accepted only if they are proportional and justifiable and there is a genuine need to impart or receive information or to represent the Council.

All gifts and hospitality, received and offered, must be properly recorded on the Gifts and Hospitality Register which is maintained by the Head of Legal, Property and Democratic Services.

Council employees who provide services to vulnerable people must always act in a professional manner and treat service users with dignity and respect at all times. Council employees must never take advantage of the service user by forming inappropriate relationships or seeking/receiving personal favours, loans or gifts, including bequests. Employees should notify their manager if they become aware of a service user's intention to bequeath.

If the Council wishes to sponsor an event, no employee or worker can benefit in a direct way without giving full disclosure to their manager of any such interest. Where the Council gives support in the community through whatever means, employees must ensure that there is no conflict of interest.

Employees must exercise extreme caution before providing any statement that endorses the quality or operation of any product or service that might be used for publicity purposes. An endorsement may put the Council at risk of misrepresentation or legal challenge.

In no circumstances should a statement ever be made in return for personal gifts or money.

Employees should seek further advice from their manager, HR or the Head of Legal, Property and Democratic Services if in any doubt about their duties regarding gifts, hospitality, sponsorship or endorsement.

Further details can be obtained on gifts and hospitality from the Head of Legal, Property and Democratic Services.

21. Providing Information in the Course of your Duties

Employees may be required to provide information relating to the Council in response to queries received as part of their job. The Council supports the principle of open government however employees should be aware of what information is available to Councillors, auditors, government departments, service users and the public and what information must remain confidential. Guidance is available in the Council's Freedom of Information Guidance to respond to Freedom of Information requests and Data Protection requirements.

Employees cannot use any information gained in the course of their employment for personal gain or pass it on to anyone else who might use it in this way.

Information held on customers or members of the public or personal information about other employees or Councillors should not be supplied to anyone inside or outside of the Council without the individual's consent, except where it is allowed in law or where it is necessary for official investigative bodies or employer confidential references.

Employees should not disclose to the public or media the contents of a confidential or exempt report made to a Committee or the Council. No proceedings of any Committee meeting taken in confidence including the content of any data, document, paper, report etc should be disclosed to members of the public unless required by law or expressly authorised.

Employees should not make statements on Council matters without reference to the Media Protocols.

22. Use of Council Facilities

Council employees must use any equipment or facilities provided by the Council for carrying out their work in a proper and responsible manner. The Council may allow reasonable personal use of some resources and facilities at appropriate times.

All Council resources must be used with care to avoid wastage, loss or damage.

The Council's waste products must not be taken for personal use, or given to others, unless expressly authorised by managers and recorded.

Any inappropriate use of equipment, facilities or other Council property will be dealt with as a disciplinary matter. If employees are in doubt they should clarify this with their line manager.

23. Health and Safety

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 places a duty on employees to take reasonable care for the health and safety of themselves and others in carrying out their duties. Therefore employees are legally bound to comply with all safety rules and instructions set by the Council. Employees should inform their manager and HR of any medical conditions that may impact on their ability to carry out duties and responsibilities in accordance with their contract of employment and this Code.

The Corporate Manslaughter and Corporate Homicide Act 2007 created additional duties for senior managers to ensure that there are safe premises and working practices. The Council will ensure that appropriate senior managers will understand how to manage these responsibilities within the law.

Refer to the Health, Safety and Welfare at Work Policy for further information.

The Health, Safety and Welfare at Work Policy is supported by a number of other health and safety policies, procedures and guidance notes to help safeguard the health of employees. All documents are available on the Council's intranet site, 'Brian' or from the Health and Safety team.

24. Alcohol and Drugs

The Council has adopted Alcohol Management Guidance.

Employees are required to report for work, and remain throughout the working day, in a fit and safe condition to undertake their duties. Employees must not consume alcohol whilst at work, unless permitted to do so in accordance with the Alcohol Management Guidance. Permission is granted only in exceptional circumstances.

Employees must not be under the influence of, use, or be in possession of, illegal drugs whilst at work.

Employees must ensure that the use of alcohol and drugs outside of work does not adversely affect their performance or safety at work or the safety of others and must not bring the Council into disrepute.

Please refer to the Alcohol Management Guidance for further information.

25. Prescribed and Over the Counter Medicines

Employees taking prescribed or over-the-counter medication (long-term or short-term) that may affect them or others at work must discuss this urgently with their manager, Health and Safety Manager or HR Manager. The manager will consider how to appropriately manage this and what support the employee or worker may need and any health and safety adjustments needed. Similarly, employees must inform their manager and/or HR of any new medical conditions that may impact on their ability to carry out duties and responsibilities in accordance with their contract of employment and this Code.

26. Copyright and Intellectual Property Rights

All records, documents, designs and other papers that relate to or are conceived within the Council's business and which are made or obtained by employees in the course of their work are the property of the Council. The copyright on all such original records, documents, papers (including copies and summaries of these) belongs to the Council.

27. Patents and Inventions

Any matter of things capable of being patented under the Patents Act 1972, made, developed or discovered by a Council employee or worker, either alone or with others during the performance of their duties should be disclosed to the Council through the line manager. Under the provisions of the Patents Act this will then be the property of the Council.

28. Further Information

Employees can get more guidance and information on this Code from their manager or HR.

Agenda Item 6

Policy Area	Last Updated	Priority	Progress to date
Recruitment Policy	2007	2018	
Equal Opportunities	2014	2018	
Redundancy Policy	2005	Proposes will be late 2018 following the completion of Terms and Conditions review.	
Discretionary enhanced Payment , Early /Flexible Retirement and Redundancy to include VR	2012	Proposes will be late 2018 following the completion of Terms and Conditions review and in particular any changes to Redundancy Policy.	
Development of Workforce Strategy	2012	Time lines to be confirmed during 2018	Verbal update at EC in November 2017
Flexible working Policy / Alteration to working hour's mgrs. / employee process.	July 2017	Proposes will be late 2018 following the completion of Terms and Conditions review.	
Essential Car User Policy	New	Proposes will be late 2018 following the completion of Terms and Conditions Review	
Health & Safety Policy	2015	2018	General Update Steve Langston
Home working Policy	2012	Proposes will be late 2018 following the completion of Terms and Conditions review.	Steve Langston
Remote working Procedure	2012	Proposes will be late 2018 following the completion of Terms and Conditions review.	Steve Langston

This page is intentionally left blank